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From: Adrian Thompson   
Sent: 25 February 2025 14:59 
To: Michael Wilson  
Cc: Stuart Semple  Stuart Purcell  
Aidan Mullan  
Subject: RE: Planning Application - LA01/2024/1187/F. Craigahulliar Landfill, Ballymacrea Road, Portrush 

Michael 

Further to our telephone conversation I can confirm the following facts. 

 The Craigahulliar site contains 2 waste management operations, a landfill site regulated by NIEA under a PPC 
Permit and a waste transfer station regulated by NIEA under a waste management licence 

 Both waste management licences and PPC Permits are authorisations reviewed, approved and regulated by 
NIEA for the operation of waste management facilities. 

 PPC permits are issued for more complex facilities that could result in greater amenity risks such as landfill 
sites 

 Waste management licences are issued for lower risk waste management sites such as waste transfer 
stations 

 I can confirm a waste management licence modification application has been submitted to NIEA for the 
additional EWC code for black bin waste at the Craigahulliar waste transfer station. NIEA have completed 
their assessment and they are content to grant the waste management licence modification. As part of 
NIEA’s assessment of the waste management licence modification they have considered any potential 
impacts to the amenity of the area, including odour. Based on their assessment they are content that the 
site can comply with the conditions of the waste management licence in relation to odour 

 I have attached a copy of the current waste management licence. If black bin waste is granted planning 
approval the site will still be regulated under condition 5.2 of the waste management licence: 
“5.2.1 Measures shall be implemented and maintained throughout the operational life of the site to control 
odour and monitor emissions of odours from the site, in accordance with Table 5.2. 
5.2.2 All emissions to air from specific waste management operations on the site shall be free from odours at 
levels as are likely to cause pollution of the environment or harm to human health or serious detriment to the 
amenity of the locality outside the site boundary, as perceived by an authorised officer of the Department” 

 The NIEA regulating the site were a statutory consultee to planning application LA01/2024/1187/F. NIEA 
considered all aspects of the application including the information contained on the potential for odour 
from the site. NIEA offered no objection to the addition of black bin waste to the waste transfer station and 
stated: 
“If MSW containing putrescible waste is temporarily stored, the shed shall be fully contained and bunded to 
prevent liquid runoff. The maximum storage time for waste shall be 48 hours to prevent pest infestation and 
odour problems. The site working plan will require updating and approval from NIEA before work 
commences.”

 The planning application is adding black bin waste to the waste transfer station. This will allow the landfill 
site to close and offer the following environment, amenity and odour improvements / betterment: 
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o The black bin waste will be sent off site via the waste transfer station within 48 hours. However, the 
Council will endeavour to have all black bin waste removed by the end of each working day. This is 
environmental betterment rather than the waste being deposited in the landfill adjacent to the 
caravan park where it will decompose / rot generating gases such as methane, carbon dioxide and 
hydrogen sulphide. The disposal of waste in the landfill will give rise to these landfill gases for 60 
years after the date the waste was placed. The decomposition of waste in a landfill site can also 
attract pests such as flies and vermin. The use of a waste transfer station will ensure this waste is 
continuously removed from the site therefore significantly reducing the risk of odour and pests. 

o Allowing the black bin waste to be added to the transfer station ensures the council can deal with 
the waste in accordance with the waste hierarchy ensuring waste is sent for recovery, where further 
recyclates can be extracted and the remaining waste turned into a fuel, rather than disposed of in 
landfill. Landfill disposal is the least preferred option under the waste hierarchy. 

o Allowing black bin waste to be added to the transfer station will allow the landfill site to close, 
rather than remain operational. If LA01/2024/1187/F is granted approval the landfill will then be 
sealed with a low permeability cap and the landfill restored to a green filed. This will provide a 
number of benefits to the caravan park which includes the removal of risk of odours from the 
landfill, the removal of the risk of pests and vermin from the landfill, the removal of the risk of wind-
blown litter from the landfill and a more acceptable visual landform. The landfill would be viewed as 
a green field rather than a large area of black bin waste.  

 If LA01/2024/1187/F is not granted approval then the Council will have to consider the continued disposal of 
black bin waste in the Craigahulliar landfill. We believe this will present significantly greater visual and 
amenity risks than the waste transfer station that has been operational for ~20 years handling household 
waste. LA01/2024/1187/F will offer significantly greater amenity benefits to the wider area of residents than 
the continued operation of the landfill. 

I trust the above sets out the regulatory control NIEA will have over the site to ensure that it does not give rise to 
odour or amenity issues outside the site boundary and at the Blair’s caravan park. 

I will copy you into a further email to the NIEA who will respond to state they are content for black bin waste to be 
transferred as part of LA01/2024/1187/F and that this will be a lower risk of odour than the current landfill site. 

If you have any further queries please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Regards 
Adrian 

From: Stuart Semple   
Sent: 25 February 2025 12:57 
To: Adrian Thompson  
Subject: FW: Planning Application - LA01/2024/1187/F. Craigahulliar Landfill, Ballymacrea Road, Portrush 

From: Michael Wilson   
Sent: 25 February 2025 12:21 
To: Stuart Semple  
Cc: Aidan McPeake  Denise Dickson 

 Jennifer Lundy 
 

Subject: FW: Planning Application - LA01/2024/1187/F. Craigahulliar Landfill, Ballymacrea Road, Portrush 

CAUTION EXTERNAL:  

Dear Stuart, 
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I refer to the objection set out in the email below and the attached RSK Review of the Odour Management 
Plan.  According to the email, this Review has been circulated to you previously. 

In light of tomorrow’s Planning Committee meeting which this application is due to be presented, I would be 
grateful if you could confirm if the variation to the PPC Permit has been licensed/permitted, and any 
comments/commentary rebutting the issues raised in the attached report including the amenity of the 
adjacent caravan park. 

In the absence of a variation to the PPC Permit allowing the additional waste codes, it is likely Planning will 
need to seek a deferral to enable consultation with NIEA Regulation Unit and further consideration of the 
matters raised within the objections. 

I did try call but it went to answer machine.  If you have any queries or wish to discuss anything please give me 
a call. 

Kind regards 
Michael 

Michael Wilson
Senior Planning O�icer
Tel. 028 7034 7220 
Mob: 

www.causewaycoastandglens.gov.uk 

Causeway Coast and Glens Borough Council processes personal information in compliance with the 
Data Protection Act 2018. To learn more, you can review our privacy notice at 
http://www.causewaycoastandglens.gov.uk/footer-information/privacy-statement. If you have 
received this email in error, please contact the sender and securely delete. You must not copy, share 
or take any further action with the information contained therein without approval. Any opinions 
expressed are those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of Causeway Coast and 
Glens Borough Council. Please consider the environment before printing.
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From: Laura Crawford  On Behalf Of Planning 
Sent: 25 February 2025 09:39 
To: Michael Wilson  Richard Heaney 

 
Subject: FW: Planning Application - LA01/2024/1187/F. Craigahulliar Landfill, Ballymacrea Road, Portrush 

Mike/Richard 
See correspondence from David Dalzell. I will upload to portal and make public as it will be considered as a 
verbal addendum 
Thanks Laura 

Laura Crawford
Business Support Officer 
Tel. 02870347100 

The linked image cannot be displayed.  The file may have been moved, renamed, or deleted. Verify  that the link points to the correct file and location.

www.causewaycoastandglens.gov.uk 

From:   
Sent: 25 February 2025 09:35 
To: Planning <Planning@causewaycoastandglens.gov.uk> 
Cc: Richard Heaney  
Subject: Planning Application - LA01/2024/1187/F. Craigahulliar Landfill, Ballymacrea Road, Portrush 

Hi Planning, 
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We have requested speaking rights at tomorrow's Planning Committee meeting with regards this 
application.   My client, Blairs Caravans Limited, had asked RSK to review the current planning application 
LA01/2024/1187/F, and particularly the Odour Management Plan submitted with the application.   To date 
we have not submitted this RSK report formally through the planning application process at this time, 
although we have provided it to the Applicant's agent for their review.   

As the RSK Report attached provides more detail on the issue of potential for odour from this proposed 
development, may I ask that you upload this to the planning portal so that the points raised by RSK may be 
taken into consideration.  Thank you. 

Regards,

David Dalzell CMLI MRTPI

Chartered Landscape Architect and Chartered Town Planner

“Fairview”

10 Fairview Lane

Articlave

Coleraine

BT51 4JX

T: 

E: 

Causeway Coast and Glens Borough Council processes personal information in compliance with the 
Data Protection Act 2018. To learn more, you can review our privacy notice at 
http://www.causewaycoastandglens.gov.uk/footer-information/privacy-statement. If you have 
received this email in error, please contact the sender and securely delete. You must not copy, share 
or take any further action with the information contained therein without approval. Any opinions 
expressed are those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of Causeway Coast and 
Glens Borough Council. Please consider the environment before printing.


































































